UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DISTRICT OF NORTH DAKOTA WESTERN DIVISION

§	
§	
§	
§	
§	
§	CIVIL ACTION NO. :
§	JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
§	
§	
§	
§	
§	
	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$

PLAINTIFF'S ORIGINAL COMPLAINT COLLECTIVE ACTION & JURY DEMAND

- 1. Defendant Southwinds Inspection Corp. ("Defendant") required Plaintiff Carlo Berrisford ("Plaintiff") to work more than forty hours in a workweek without overtime compensation. Defendant misclassified Plaintiff and other similarly situated workers throughout the United States as exempt from overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.
- 2. Defendant's conduct violates the FLSA, which requires non-exempt employees to be compensated for all hours in excess of forty in a workweek at one and one-half times their regular rates of pay. *See* 29 U.S.C. § 207(a). On behalf of himself and all other similarly situated employees, Plaintiff brings this action as a collective action under the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). Members of the collective action are referred to as the "FLSA Class Members."

SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.

- 4. Venue is proper in this District because a Defendant does a significant portion of its business in this District and many of the wrongs herein alleged occurred in this District.
- 5. Plaintiff worked for Defendant throughout North Dakota and Defendant maintains an office in North Dakota.

PARTIES AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION

- 6. Plaintiff Carlo Berrisford is an individual residing in Valley County, Montana. Plaintiff's written consent to this action is attached hereto as Exhibit "A." Plaintiff performed work for Defendant within the last three years for which he did not receive the FLSA's required overtime.
- 7. The FLSA Class Members are all current and former inspectors, and all employees in substantially similar positions, that worked at any time during the three-year period before the filing of this Complaint.
- 8. Defendant Southwinds Inspection Corp. is a for profit corporation organized under the laws of Oklahoma. Defendant may be served process through its registered agent Johnnie Fleming Jr., 17866 E. 760 Road, Kingfisher, OK 73750, or wherever he may be found.

COVERAGE

- 9. At all material times, Defendant has been an employer within the meaning of 3(d) of the FLSA. 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).
- 10. At all material times, Defendant has been an enterprise within the meaning of 3(r) of the FLSA. 29 U.S.C. § 203(r).
- 11. At all material times, Defendant has been an enterprise or enterprise in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce within the meaning of 3(s)(1) of the FLSA because Defendant has had and continues to have employees engaged in commerce. 29 U.S.C. § 203(s)(1).

- 12. Furthermore, Defendant has an annual gross business volume of not less than \$500,000.
- 13. At all material times, Plaintiff and Class Members were employees who engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce as required by 29 USC § 207.

FACTS

- 14. Defendant Southwinds Inspection Corp. is an oilfield services company that provides specialized inspection services to its clients in the drilling and pipeline industries.
- 15. Defendant has offices in Oklahoma, North Dakota, Montana, and Colorado from which it dispatches its inspector workforce.
- 16. Defendant provides a variety of inspection services including construction inspection, welding inspection, utility inspection, and safety inspections.
- 17. Plaintiff worked for Defendant as an inspector from approximately February of 2012 to February of 2016. He performed work for Defendant in multiple states, including North Dakota and Montana.
- 18. Plaintiff was responsible for performing the visual inspection of pipelines and the welds that join together individual pieces of pipe.
- 19. The work of an inspector involves a substantial amount of physical labor, including walking for miles a day in arduous conditions, crawling around pipe, climbing ladders, and transporting equipment.
 - 20. Inspectors commonly work in excess of 12 hours each day.
 - 21. Inspectors usually work five to six days each week.
- 22. Inspectors are paid a salary for their labor and do not receive overtime for their work in excess of 40 hours per week.

- 23. No exemption in the FLSA law shelters Defendant from paying overtime to its inspectors.
- 24. Inspectors do not supervise other employees or manage a customarily recognized department of Defendant's company.
 - 25. Inspectors have no authority to hire or fire other employees.
- 26. Inspectors are field employees, not office employees. They perform work related to Defendant's core business, not the management of the company's operations.
- 27. The primary duty of an inspector does not require independent judgment or discretion. Instead, inspectors are required to carry out their inspections according to detailed step-by-step procedures promulgated by Defendant or Defendant's customers.
 - 28. The FLSA's regulations even provide that inspection work is non-exempt work:

Ordinary inspection work generally does not meet the duties requirements for the administrative exemption. Inspectors normally perform specialized work along standardized lines involving well-established techniques and procedures which may have been catalogued and described in manuals and other sources. Such inspectors rely on techniques and skills acquired by special training or experience. They have some leeway in the performance of their work but only within closely prescribed limits.

29 C.F.R. 541.203(g).

- 29. Inspectors are not computer-systems analysts, computer programmers, software engineers, or other similar employees.
- 30. Despite these facts, Defendant misclassified its inspectors as exempt from overtime pay.
- 31. As a result of Defendant's pay policies, Plaintiff and other inspectors were denied overtime pay.
 - 32. All of Defendant's inspectors are paid a salary without overtime.

- 33. All of Defendant's inspectors perform the same general duties.
- 34. Over the last three years, nationwide, Defendant has employed at least 25 inspectors.
- 35. Defendant knew, or showed reckless disregard for whether Plaintiff and the other inspectors were entitled to overtime pay under the law.

COUNT ONE: VIOLATION OF 29 U.S.C. § 207

- 36. Plaintiff incorporates all allegations contained in the foregoing paragraphs.
- 37. Defendant's practice of failing to pay Plaintiff time-and-a-half for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) per workweek violates the FLSA. 29 U.S.C. § 207.
- 38. None of the exemptions provided by the FLSA regulating the duty of employers to pay overtime at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular rate at which its employees are paid are applicable to Defendant, Plaintiff, or the FLSA Class Members.

COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS

- 39. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding paragraphs.
- 40. Plaintiff has actual knowledge that FLSA Class Members have also been denied overtime pay for hours worked over forty (40) hours in a workweek as a result of Defendant's misclassification of its employees.
- 41. Plaintiff's knowledge is based on his personal work experience and through communications with other workers of Defendant. Plaintiff personally worked with other inspectors under the same compensation structure at multiple job sites for Defendant.
- 42. Defendant has employed at least 10 other salary paid inspectors in the in the three years prior to the filing of this lawsuit.

- 43. Defendant has employed over 20 other salary paid inspectors in the three years prior to the filing of this lawsuit.
- 44. Other workers similarly situated to the Plaintiff worked for Defendant throughout the United States, but were not paid overtime at the rate of one and one-half their regular rates of pay when those hours exceeded forty (40) hours in a workweek.
- 45. Although Defendant permitted and/or required FLSA Class Members to work in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek, Defendant denied them full compensation for their hours worked over forty (40).
- 46. Defendant misclassified and continues to misclassify FLSA Class Members as exempt employees.
- 47. FLSA Class Members perform or have performed the same or similar work as Plaintiff and were misclassified as exempt by Defendant.
 - 48. FLSA Class Members are not exempt from receiving overtime pay under the FLSA.
- 49. As such, FLSA Class Members are similar to Plaintiff in terms of relevant job duties, pay structure, misclassification as exempt employees and/or the denial of overtime pay.
- 50. Defendant's failure to pay overtime compensation at the rate required by the FLSA results from generally applicable policies or practices, and does not depend on the personal circumstances of any FLSA Class Member.
- 51. The experiences of Plaintiff, with respect to his pay, hours, and duties are typical of the experiences of the FLSA Class Members.
- 52. The specific job titles or precise job responsibilities of each FLSA Class Member does not prevent collective treatment.

- 53. All FLSA Class Members, irrespective of their particular job requirements, are entitled to overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek.
- 54. Although the exact amount of damages may vary among the FLSA Class Members, the damages for the FLSA Class Members can be easily calculated by a simple formula. The claims of all FLSA Class Members arise from a common nucleus of facts. Liability is based on a systematic course of wrongful conduct by Defendants that caused harm to all FLSA Class Members.
- 55. As such, the class of similarly situated Plaintiffs for the FLSA Class is properly defined as follows:

All current and former inspectors, and all employees with substantially similar duties, who worked for Defendant at any time during the three-year period before the filing of this Complaint.

JURY DEMAND

56. Plaintiff and Class Members hereby demand trial by jury on all issues.

PRAYER

- 57. For these reasons, Plaintiff prays for:
 - a. An order designating the FLSA Class as a collective action and authorizing notice pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) to all inspectors and all similarly situated employees to permit them to join this action by filing a written notice of consent;
 - b. A judgment against Defendant awarding Plaintiff and the FLSA Class Members all their unpaid overtime compensation and liquidated damages;
 - c. An order awarding attorneys' fees and costs;
 - d. Such other and further relief as may be necessary and appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

By: /s/ John Neuman
John Neuman
SOSA-MORRIS NEUMAN
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
jneuman@smnlawfirm.com
Texas State Bar No. 24083560
5612 Chaucer Drive
Houston, Texas 77005
Telephone: (281) 885-8630
Facsimile: (281) 885-8813

LEAD ATTORNEY IN CHARGE FOR PLAINTIFF AND CLASS MEMBERS

Case 1:17-cv-00117-CSVIL Deciment 1-1-Eiled 06/05/17 Page 1 of 1

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

purpose of initiating the civil d	ocket sheet. (SEE INSTRUC	TIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF T	HIS FORM.)				
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS			DEFENDANTS	DEFENDANTS			
Carlo Berrisford			Southwinds Inspection Corp.				
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)			County of Residence of First Listed Defendant (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.				
(c) Attorneys (Firm Name,)	Address, and Telephone Numbe	r)	Attorneys (If Known)				
Sosa-Morris Neuman Att TX 77005, 281-885-8630		Chaucer Drive, Housto	n,				
II. BASIS OF JURISDI	ICTION (Place an "X" in C	One Box Only)		RINCIPAL PARTIES	(Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintif		
☐ 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	★ 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)			IF DEF 1 □ 1 Incorporated <i>or</i> Proof Business In T			
☐ 2 U.S. Government Defendant	☐ 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)		Citizen of Another State	2			
			Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	3	□ 6 □ 6		
IV. NATURE OF SUIT			EODERITHDE/DENIAT TW	Click here for: Nature of Su	-		
CONTRACT ☐ 110 Insurance ☐ 120 Marine ☐ 130 Miller Act ☐ 140 Negotiable Instrument ☐ 150 Recovery of Overpayment	PERSONAL INJURY □ 310 Airplane □ 315 Airplane Product Liability □ 320 Assault, Libel &	PERSONAL INJURY 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY 370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending 380 Other Personal Property Damage Product Liability PRISONER PETITIONS Habeas Corpus: 463 Alien Detainee 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence 530 General 535 Death Penalty Other: 540 Mandamus & Other 550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition 560 Civil Detainee - Conditions of Confinement	FORFEITURE/PENALTY 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 690 Other LABOR	BANKRUPTCY □ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 □ 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157 PROPERTY RIGHTS □ 820 Copyrights □ 830 Patent □ 840 Trademark SOCIAL SECURITY □ 861 HIA (1395ff) □ 862 Black Lung (923) □ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) □ 864 SSID Title XVI □ 865 RSI (405(g)) FEDERAL TAX SUITS □ 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant) □ 871 IRS—Third Party 26 USC 7609	OTHER STATUTES □ 375 False Claims Act □ 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a)) □ 400 State Reapportionment □ 410 Antitrust □ 430 Banks and Banking □ 450 Commerce □ 460 Deportation □ 470 Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations □ 480 Consumer Credit □ 490 Cable/Sat TV □ 850 Securities/Commodities/ Exchange □ 890 Other Statutory Actions □ 891 Agricultural Acts □ 893 Environmental Matters □ 895 Freedom of Information Act □ 896 Arbitration □ 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision □ 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes		
	moved from	Appellate Court	Reinstated or 5 Transfe Reopened Anothe (specify, iling (Do not cite jurisdictional state)	er District Litigation Transfer			
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	Pair Labor Standa Brief description of ca Failure to Pay Ov	ause:	on, et seq.				
VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:	I. REQUESTED IN						
VIII. RELATED CASI IF ANY	E(S) (See instructions):	JUDGE		DOCKET NUMBER			
DATE 05/31/2017		signature of attor /s/ John Neuman	RNEY OF RECORD				
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY RECEIPT # AI	MOUNT	APPLYING IFP	JUDGE_	MAG. JUI	DGE		

Case 1:17-cv-00117-CSM Document 1-2 Filed 06/05/17 Page 1 of 1

WAGE AND HOUR LITIGATION CONSENT FORM

Printed Name: CaRLO Dear BERRISFORD

- I consent and agree to pursue my claims of unpaid overtime and/or minimum wage through the lawsuit filed against my employer by Sosa-Morris Neuman Attorneys at Law.
- 2. I understand that this lawsuit is brought under the Fair Labor Standards Act and all applicable state laws. I hereby consent, agree and opt-in to become a plaintiff herein and be bound by any judgment by the Court or any settlement of this action.
- 3. I intend to pursue my claim individually, unless and until the court certifies this case as a collective or class action. I agree to serve as the class representative if the court approves. If someone else serves as the class representative, then I designate the class representatives as my agents to make decisions on my behalf concerning the litigation, the method and manner of conducting the litigation, the entering of an agreement with the plaintiffs' counsel concerning attorney's fees and costs, and all other matters pertaining to this lawsuit.
- 4. If my consent form is stricken or if I am for any reason not allowed to participate in this case, I authorize Plaintiffs' counsel to use this Consent Form to re-file my claims in a separate or related action against my employer.

Signature

Date Signed <u>5 - 21 - 17</u>

The information provided below will not be filed with the court:

ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: Former Employee Files Suit Against Southwinds Inspection Corp.